
Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Addendum to 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, August 12, 2014 – 7:00 pm 
City Hall, City Commission Chambers 

1376 E. Ninth St. 
 

Susie Galea ...............................................................Mayor, At-Large 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
Dr. George Straface ............................................................ District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation.  The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

Addendum to Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (Roll Call Vote Required)         
Adjourn into Closed Session in compliance with Section 10-15-1.H, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), to discuss: 
 

  Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager Evaluation) 
 

 
 

 
 



Alamogordo City Commission

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
August 12, 2014 – 7:00 pm 

City Hall, City Commission Chambers 
1376 E. Ninth St. 

 
Susie Galea ...............................................................................Mayor 
Robert Rentschler......................................Mayor Pro-Tem, District 3 
Jason Baldwin...................................................................... District 1 
Nadia Sikes ...........................................................................District 2 
Jenny Turnbull ......................................................................District 4 
Al Hernandez .........................................................................District 5 
Dr. George Straface ............................................................ District 6 

 
Jim Stahle ..................................................................... City Manager 
Stephen Thies ............................................................... City Attorney 
Renee Cantin ...................................................................... City Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 

In accordance with Section 10-15-1.D, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), this agenda has been posted on the 
bulletin board located in the east/west lobby of the City Hall and in the glass case located outside a the north entrance of the 
City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on the City website:  http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us within the 
required time frame.  As a courtesy, the entire Agenda Packet has also been posted on the City of Alamogordo website:  
http://ci.alamogordo.nm.us 

The Mayor and City Commission request that all cell phones be turned off or set to vibrate.  Members of the audience are 
requested to step outside the Commission Chambers to respond to or to conduct a phone conversation. The Alamogordo 
Commission Chambers is wheelchair accessible.  Other special assistance for disabled attendees must be requested 48 hours 
in advance by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 575-439-4205.   

 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL          
Announce the presence of a Quorum. 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE         
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA            
 

PRESENTATIONS             
 
1. German Air Force will be presenting a check to the City of Alamogordo for the sponsorship 

program at the Alamogordo Family Recreation Center. 
 
2. Presentation related to puppy sales in the City of Alamogordo. (Sunny Aris, Animal Village) 

MISSION STATEMENT as Adopted by the City Commission on March 24, 1995. 
The City of Alamogordo is a Municipal Corporation that exists solely for the purpose of providing the best possible 
services to our customers, the citizens of Alamogordo. We are committed to providing these services with honesty, 
integrity, compassion, fairness, and a commitment to excellence.  

We are committed to the long-term financial stability and responsible growth of the City and all decisions will be driven by 
our commitment to provide the best services possible in a financially sound and responsible manner given the economic 
realities facing the City.    

RCantin
Typewritten Text



August 12, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 3
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT            
Residents must sign up with the City Clerk to address the City Commission. Comments are limited to 3 Minutes, and there will 
be a maximum of 21 Minutes allowed for Public Comment. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA  (Roll Call Vote Required for Items No. 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, & 15)     
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Commission and will be enacted by one 
motion.  There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 
3. Approve Minutes of the July 22, 2014 Regular Meeting of the Alamogordo City Commission. 

(Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
4. Approve statement related to the Executive Session of July 22, 2014. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 
 
5. Accept the Investment Report for the quarter ending June 30, 2014, in accordance with the City of 

Alamogordo Investment Ordinance.  (LeeAnn Nichols, Finance Director) 
 
6. Approve a Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of Alamogordo and the Alamogordo 

Public Safety Officers Association (APSOA).  (Stephen Thies, City Attorney) 
 
7. Approve an Easement Modification Agreement with NM Gas Company related to the White Sands 

Regional Airport Runway Extension Project.  (Nancy Beshaler, Project Manager & Stephen Thies, City 
Attorney) 

 
8. Approve a Special Dispenser Permit Application and a Temporary Alcoholic Beverage Dispenser’s 

License for Carino’s Italian for the Cottonwood Festival from August 29th to August 31st at 
Alameda Park.  (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
9. Approve the Public Celebration Permit Applications and a Temporary Alcoholic Beverage 

Dispenser’s License for the Tularosa Basin Wine & Music Fest from September 20th to September 
21st, 2014 at Alameda Park.  (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
10. Approve Resolution No. 2014-37 authorizing the City Manager to sign any documents and 

agreements with the New Mexico Non-Metro Area Agency on Aging and the Alamo Senior Center 
for FY 2014-2015. [Roll call vote required]  (Veronica Ortega, Alamogordo Senior Center Manager) 

 
11. Approve Resolution No. 2014-38 amending the Convenience Center rates. [Roll call vote required]  

(Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 
 
12. Approve Resolution No. 2014-39 requesting written approval from the Local Government Division 

of the Department of Finance & Administration, State of New Mexico for the revised budget figures 
computed as of August 12th, 2014. [Roll call vote required] (LeeAnn Nichols, Finance Director) 

 
13. Approve Resolution No. 2014-40 authorizing the Mayor to execute the agreement for membership 

in the Southeastern New Mexico Economic Development District/Council of Governments 
(SNMEDD/COG). [Roll call vote required] (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
14. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1468 amending the Alamogordo Code of 

Ordinances to add a new section in Chapter 24 concerning vehicle forfeiture. [Roll call vote 
required]  (Stephen Thies, City Attorney) 

 
15. Approve the final publication of Ordinance No. 1472 creating new Article 7-05 in the Code of 

Ordinances concerning Pigeon Nuisance and Abatement. [Roll call vote required]  (Stephen Thies, 
City Attorney) 

 
16. Approve the Award of RFQ No. 2014-04 to Engineers, Inc. for Engineering Services related to 

Florida Avenue Realignment at First Street and approve negotiation of the professional 
Engineering Design Services Agreement.  (Nancy Beshaler, Project Manager) 

 



August 12, 2014 City of Alamogordo Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 3
 

 

17. Approve the award of RFQ No. 2014-07 to Bohannan-Huston, Inc. for Engineering Services for the 
Reclaimed Water Line Looping project and approve negotiation of the professional Engineering 
Design Services Agreement. (Nancy Beshaler, Project Manager) 

 
18. Approve a request from the Otero County United Way to waive the fees at the convenience center 

for anyone to dispose of their unwanted waste on September 5, 2014 for the Day of Caring. 
 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA        
     
PUBLIC HEARINGS            
 
19. Public Hearing, consider, and act upon, Application No. 911558 to grant a transfer of Ownership 

and Location for Liquor License #0283 from Meridian Investments, LLC to Allsup’s Convenience 
Stores, Inc. d/b/a Allsup’s Store No. 95, located at 822 N. Scenic Dr., Alamogordo, NM. (Renee 
Cantin, City Clerk) 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS            
 
20. Consider, and act upon, the award of Public Works Bid No. 2014-013 related to Indian Wells Road 

and Pecan Drive/Washington Avenue Right Turn Lanes.  (Brian Cesar, Public Works Director) 
 

NEW BUSINESS             
 
21. Consider, and act upon a request by Darryl & Josephine Gallent for an abatement of a utility bill 

for 300 24th Street. (LeeAnn Nichols, Finance Director and Nichole Sierra, Utility Billing Supervisor) 
 
22. Consider, and act upon a request by Darryl & Josephine Gallent for an abatement of a utility bill 

for 1601 Memory Lane.  (LeeAnn Nichols, Finance Director and Nichole Sierra, Utility Billing Supervisor) 
 
23. Consider, and act upon, a request to approve to pay a $750 One-Time Longevity payment to 

current Non Represented Regular Full Time Employees, and a $750 pro-rated One Time Longevity 
payment to Non-Represented Regular Part-Time employees; with a hire date no later than July 1, 
2013, as approved during FY 2015 Budget Hearings. (Katie Josselyn, Human Resources Manager) 

 
24. Consider, and act upon, the first publication of Ordinance No. 1474 adopting the 2013 

amendments to the Uniform Traffic Ordinance with certain amendments thereto. (Stephen Thies, 
City Attorney) 

 
25. Request for participation in the Extra Mile Day.  (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 
26. Consider, and act upon, selecting a Voting Delegate and Alternate Delegate for the New Mexico 

Municipal League Annual Conference Business Meeting being held August 26th – 29th, 2014 in 
Albuquerque, NM. (Renee Cantin, City Clerk) 

 
27. Appointments to Boards & Committees.  (Susie Galea, Mayor) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  (Continued if needed)        
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT           
 

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY THE CITY COMMISSION      
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION (Roll Call Vote Required)         
Adjourn into Closed Session in compliance with Section 10-15-1.H, NMSA 1978 (2010 Cumulative Supplement), to discuss: 
 

  Limited Personnel Matters (City Manager Evaluation) 

ADJOURNMENT             















RCantin
Typewritten Text









RCantin
Typewritten Text















 

                                                             Preamble Original Language 
                                                

PREAMBLE 
 
THIS AGREEMENT has been made and entered into between the CITY OF ALAMOGORDO 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Employer" or the "City") and the ALAMOGORDO PUBLIC 
SAFETY OFFICERS ASSOCIATION (hereinafter referred to as the "APSOA" or the 
"Association.") 
 
The parties agree that their respective policies will not violate the rights of any employee 
covered by this Agreement because of race, age, sex, color, national origin, union, or non-
association affiliation. Neither party will tolerate sexual harassment. 
 
The overall purpose of this Agreement is to provide for orderly and constructive employee 
relations in the public interest, and in the interest of all employees herein covered, and in the 
interest of the City to maintain harmony, cooperation, and understanding between the Employer 
and the Employees in the Unit, to protect the rights of the City Employees, to protect the rights 
of the Employer, and to protect the delivery of services to the citizens of the City of Alamogordo. 
 
The City, the Association, and its members agree that every effort will be made to administer 
and abide by this Agreement in accordance with the true intent of its terms and provisions to the 
end of maintaining sound labor management relations. 
 

                                                          
                                                                                               Section 1 Original Language 

 

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 
 
A.   This Agreement relates to the Employees of the City in the designated collective 
bargaining unit. The parties do hereby acknowledge that this Agreement represents an 
amicable understanding reached by both parties as the result of negotiations of the parties as 
provided in the City of Alamogordo Labor-Management Relation Ordinance No. 789. 
 
B. This Agreement is the only Agreement of the parties. Neither party has an obligation to 
open negotiations prior to 90 days before the expiration of this Agreement; however, by mutual 
agreement the parties may open negotiations at any time. 
 
 

                                                                             Section 2 Original Language 
                                              

SECTION 2. RECOGNITION 
 
The City recognizes the Association as the sole exclusive bargaining representative in all 
matters pertaining to wages, hours, working conditions, and other conditions of employment for 
the employees in the Unit described in this "Agreement". The City recognizes the Union as the 
exclusive bargaining agent for all regular, full-time, non-probationary Firefighters and Police 
Officers through the rank of Sergeant. 



 

 
 
 

                                                                   Section 3 Original Language 
                                

SECTION 3. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS 
 

A. The Association shall represent the employees in negotiations and in grievances related to 
this contract. 

 
B. The Association shall be entitled to dues deduction upon presentation of dues deduction 

authorization cards signed by the individual employee. 
 
C. The Association shall be the exclusive bargaining representative during the term of this 

agreement in accordance with the City of Alamogordo Labor-Management Relation 
Ordinance No. 789. 

 
D. The Association President, or the President's designee, upon the approval of the Director of 

Public Safety, will be allowed reasonable time off with pay to assist in 
employee/management matters. 

 
E. The Association may distribute information prior to or immediately following the daily 

briefing.  City shall provide space for a bulletin board for the posting of official Association 
notices and other information, except religious, partisan, derogatory, or discriminatory 
notices. The bulletin board will not be used to criticize the Association, any Association 
policies, any Association officials, Management, Management policies or any Management 
employees or the City. 

 
 
 

                                                                                        Section 4 Original Language 
 

SECTION 4. ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP DUES DEDUCTIONS 
 

A. Upon receipt of a voluntary authorization dues deduction card executed by an employee 
who is covered by this bargaining unit, the employee may have membership dues deducted 
by the City in accordance with the dues levied by the Association in accordance with its 
constitution and its by-laws. Employees may cancel their dues deduction authorization at 
any time subject to a fifteen- (15) working day written notice to the human resources office, 
which will then notify the Association. 

 
B. The City agrees to forward to the Association all dues withheld pursuant to valid 

authorization cards. Dues withheld will be forwarded to the Association each pay period. 
 
C. Should an issue arise as to the amount deducted, the City's only obligation is to present 

factual material as to the amount actually deducted. Any adjustment shall be handled strictly 
between the employee and the Association. 

 



 

D. The Association shall indemnify, defend and save the City harmless against any and all 
claims, demands, suits or any other forms of liability that shall arise out of or as a result of 
any conduct taken by the City for the purpose of complying with this section. 

 
E. The City agrees to provide the Association a list of employees in the bargaining unit upon 

request.  The list shall include the employee’s name and position. 
 

 
 
 

                                                                                                    Section 5 Language Change 
                                                

SECTION 5. INJURY LEAVE WITH PAY 
 

In the event the disability lasts more than seven (7) calendar days, the employee becomes 
eligible for Worker’s Compensation Indemnity or may elect to use accrued PTO leave for the 
seven (7) days prior to Worker’s Compensation being paid by the provider.  The employee will 
then be compensated at a rate not to exceed the difference between Worker's Compensation 
indemnity received and the employees’ base pay, less tax withholding, for a period not to 
exceed sixty (60) calendar days within one year from the date of the injury. In the event the 
temporary disability continues beyond this period, the employee then may use accrued PTO 
leave. If the injury is determined to be permanent, the employee shall be entitled to receive 
injury leave with pay until PERA disability payments begin, up to an additional sixty (60) 
calendar days. PTO leave is accrued during injury leave. Employees must at anytime submit to 
certification by the City’s designated physician that the employee’s injury requires the employee 
be absent from work. As a condition of employment, the employee must cooperate with the City 
in any legal actions to recover damages, benefits, settlements, or in any court action. 
 
A. Any employee injured in an accident arising out of and in the course of his/her employment 

or who has acquired an occupational disease as defined by the State of New Mexico Statute 
shall receive prompt medical attention at the City's expense under the Workers’ 
Compensation Program. 

 
B. The City Manager, or designee, is in charge of medical referrals and the investigation, 

processing, and settlement of claims resulting from injury to an employee. The injured 
employee shall report all on-the-job injuries within twenty-four (24) hours. The City Manager, 
or designee, will make a report to the State of New Mexico Labor and Industrial Safety 
Commission and conduct a full investigation if necessary. 

 
C. Following an injury that requires absence from work for more than three (3) calendar days, 

an employee must be cleared for return to work by the Human Resources Director, as the 
City may require a medical examination of the employee by a physician designated by the 
City.  Questions of comprehensibility and settlement of claims from Worker's Compensation 
shall be referred to the Worker's Compensation Insurers. 

 
D. The City agrees to continue paying the employer portion of medical benefits while employee 

is on injury leave with pay. 
 
E. In the event an employee on-the-job suffers an on-the-job injury, which by its nature cannot 

heal within sixty (60) calendar days after release from a hospital, or contracts a potentially 
disabling disease or illness that would temporarily disable the employee beyond the sixty 



 

(60) calendar days established in paragraph one, the injury leave with pay may continue for 
an additional ninety (90) calendar days. An employee that refuses to participate in a City 
provided Inoculation Program shall not be eligible for the additional injury leave with pay for 
a disabling disease for which said Inoculation would provide protection. 

 
 
F. The City agrees to provide light duty work only as the result of an on-the-job injury after a 

licensed physician’s determination that the employee cannot return to his/her normal duties, 
and after that physician has defined the employee’s limitations and abilities and declares the 
employee will be able to return to full duty after a specified period of time. Light duty shall be 
limited to two hundred ten (210) calendar days. Priority will be given to placing the employee 
within the Alamogordo Police Department and Alamogordo Fire Department, but may be 
any position within the City for which a vacancy exists. Such assignment will not result in the 
employee being paid at less than his/her current rate of pay.  

 
G. The City agrees to provide light duty work only as the result of an off-the-job injury after a 

licensed physician’s determination that the employee cannot return to his/her normal duties, 
and after that physician has defined the employee’s limitations and abilities and declares the 
employee will be able to return to full duty after a specified period of time. Light duty shall be 
limited to sixty (60) calendar days in a COA fiscal year. Priority will be given to placing the 
employee within Alamogordo Police Department and Alamogordo Fire Department, but may 
be any position within the City for which a vacancy exists, without creating a new position for 
the injured employee. Such assignment will not result in the employee being paid at less 
than his/her current rate of pay. 

 
Nothing in this section prevents the City Manager from extending the terms set forth herein 
based on medical information that indicates the extension will allow the employee to return 
to duty.  

 
 

  
 

       Section 6 Original Language 
 

SECTION 6. LAYOFF AND RECALL 
 
A. When it is necessary to have a reduction in the City's work force, employees will be laid off 

in reverse order of seniority within classification. Seniority for the purposes of Layoff and 
Recall is defined as full-time regular continuous employment with the City (date of hire) 
applied to the classification held. 

 
B. Employees subject to layoff who have held a prior classification shall have the right to bump 

to that prior classification provided that the employee is still fully qualified to do the work and 
the employee has greater seniority in total City employment than the incumbent. 

 
C. The City shall notify the affected employee(s) and the Association by letter at least thirty (30) 

calendar days prior to any reduction in force. The Association will be afforded the 
opportunity to meet with the City to discuss the circumstances requiring the layoff and any 
proposed alternatives. Employees laid off due to reduction in work force will be called back 
to work by classification in their seniority order. 

 



 

D. Laid off employees have the responsibility of keeping the City informed as to their correct 
mailing address. The City will advise the employee to be recalled by certified or registered 
United States mail. A copy of such recall notice will be furnished to the President of the 
Association. An employee receiving notice of recall, will, within seven (7) working days, 
acknowledge receipt by certified or registered mail advising the Human Resources Director 
of the date he/she will be available for service, which available date must not be later than 
thirty (30) calendar days from the day the employee receives the recall notice. Employees 
failing to comply with this section forfeit their recall rights. It is understood that the City will 
have discharged its obligation of notification to laid off employees by having forwarded the 
recall notice as herein outlined. Employees shall retain seniority held at the time of layoff. 

 
E. Employees on layoff status will be terminated one (1) year from the effective date of layoff if 

they have not been recalled. 
 

 
 

      Section 7 Original Language 
                                                

SECTION 7. LEGAL PROTECTION 
 
A. Should a public employee covered by this agreement be sued in a civil action for any 

allegations arising out of the course and scope of the officer's employment, the City will 
defend and indemnify the employee pursuant to the requirements of the New Mexico Tort 
Claims Act, Section 41-4-1 et. seq., NMSA, as amended. 

 
B. It is understood by the parties that it is against public policy to defend a pubic employee in a 

criminal suit once the public employee is indicted for a criminal act. 
 
C. In the event a public employee covered by this agreement is sued in a civil action in which 

punitive damages are alleged, and the employee was not personally served with the 
summons and complaint, it shall be the duty of the City to notify the employee in writing 
through delivery of a copy of the complaint within 10 days of receipt of the suit by the City 
Attorney. This provision shall only apply to suits filed after the effective date of this 
agreement. 

 
D. Any public employee covered by this Agreement for whom the City provides a defense shall 

cooperate fully with the City for the duration of the litigation, including any and all appeals. 
 
E. For the purpose of this section and agreement, the phrase "course and scope of duty" 

means the lawful acts in which the public employee covered by this Agreement is requested, 
required, or authorized to perform by the City. 

 
 

       Section 8 Original Language 
 

SECTION 8. LOST OR STOLEN PROPERTY 
 
Officers who have lost, damaged or have had City property stolen in the line of duty, regardless 
of the costs, will not be required to reimburse the City, with the exception of behavior deemed 
by the Director of Public Safety to be negligent or blameworthy carelessness. The City will 
reimburse a Member of the Association up to the replacement cost for health aids such as 



 

prescription eyeglasses or contact lenses, false teeth, hearing aids, prosthesis, or any required 
equipment as determined by the Director, damaged in the line of duty as a result of a direct 
delivery of service.   This language is not intended to allow for the replacement of old worn out 
health aids, uniform apparel or required equipment.  The incident must not be determined to be 
due to the member's own negligence.  All instances of lost, damaged, or stolen property will be 
reported to the member’s supervisor on duty, in writing, at the time of occurrence or before the 
end of the shift.  Failure to notify the supervisor will negate any claim for replacement. Where 
practicable, damaged property shall be presented to the Department for inspection, prior to 
replacement and shall be turned in for destruction at the time of replacement.  All members of 
the bargaining unit shall be responsible for the safekeeping of all equipment provided by the 
Department. Any member who fails to safeguard any such equipment or who willfully destroys 
the equipment may be charged for replacement on a fair "wear and tear" basis. 

 
 
 

      Section 9 Original Language 
  

SECTION 9. PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS 
 
A. Any member may review a negative performance evaluation through the chain of command 

up to the Department Director. 
 
B. The member may document his/her point of view on any evaluation. Such documentation 

will be in writing and will be made a part of his/her personnel file. 
 
C. Members shall be required to sign the performance evaluation but will be allowed to indicate 

that he/she does not concur with the performance evaluation. 
 
D. The Member's evaluation shall be completed as provided by sections 3-3-01 through 3-3-1- 

of Department’s rules and regulations. 
 

 
                                                                

                                                                                    Section 10 Original Language 
                                                

SECTION 10. LEAVE FOR CITY BUSINESS 
 
Leave with pay may be authorized for a member of the Association to attend official meetings 
where the good of the City service is involved or to conduct the City's business at a location 
other than the member's normal work station. 

       
                                                                                 Section 11 Original Language 

                                                
SECTION 11. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

 
The City shall allow up to three (3) consecutively scheduled work days of bereavement leave for 
bargaining unit members who sustain a death in their immediate family for the purpose of 
attending the funeral.  The amount of bereavement leave allowed up to the limits specified will 
be at the discretion of the Police Chief and/or Fire Chief in each instance.  The ”immediate 
family” for the purpose of this provision is defined as: spouse, children, brother, sister, parent, 



 

grandchild, grandparent, step, half, and in-law relatives of the same, and any other person 
deemed as immediate family at the discretion of the Police Chief and/or Fire Chief.  Any 
member who must travel 500 miles or more one way will be allowed an additional scheduled 
work day of Bereavement Leave for a total of four consecutively scheduled work days during 
any one instance.  Should a covered employee take other leave to be present with an 
immediate family member and the family member passes during this leave, the employee may 
then utilize the bereavement leave retroactively.  For purposes of this section, intervening 
scheduled days off shall not be counted against the total bereavement leave allotment.  By way 
of example, a patrol officer working the work shift of three days on, two days off and two days 
on who takes bereavement leave commencing with the second regularly scheduled work day of 
the three days on segment of the work shift would be allowed bereavement leave for the second 
and third regularly scheduled work days along with the first day of the next regularly scheduled 
two days on. 
Employees may use additional PTO leave or leave without pay, at the option of the employee 
and with the Police Chief and/or Fire Chief’s approval. Documentation of death may be required. 

                                                                                             Section 12 Original Language  
   

  
SECTION 12. FAMILY LEAVE 

 
Family leave will be administered in accordance with the Family Medical Leave Act and the City 
Personnel Manual. 
 
 

                                                                                                  Section 13 Original Language  
                                                

SECTION 13. EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL FILE 
 
A. A copy of any material pertaining to an employee's performance or to disciplinary actions to 

be placed in the employee's personnel file must be presented to the employee for signature 
and review. 

 
B. All employees shall be allowed to review the contents of their personnel file, with the 

exception of medical files, during normal working hours (8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M.) Reasonable 
requests for copies of documents in the file shall be honored.  

 
C. The personnel file kept by the Human Resources Office is the official employee file. 
 
D. Departmental working files may be viewed upon request to the Department Director. 
 
E. Personnel Department files are permanent records of an employee's performance with the 

City. Such files will not be purged, except as provided by law. 
 

 
                                                                    Section 14 Original Language  
 

SECTION 14. DISCIPLINARY ACTION 
 
Disciplinary action will be implemented in accordance with the City Personnel Manual. 



 

                                                                                       T/A Section 15 Language Change  
                                                        Date: _____________________ 

SECTION 15. HOURS OF WORK/WORK PERIOD 
 

A. Patrol Officers. The normal work day for every patrol officer shall be twelve (12) hours and 
ten (10) minutes. Regular hours of work each day shall be consecutive.  It is understood that 
the beginning time for each 12-hour, ten (10) minute shift may be adjusted at the discretion 
of the shift supervisor upon five days’ notice unless exigent circumstances warrant shorter 
notice. Scheduling errors by management do not constitute exigent circumstances.  The 
work period for every patrol officer shall consist of eighty and one-half (80.5) hours in a 
fourteen (14) consecutive day period.  The work schedule for all police officers assigned to 
patrol duties shall consist of a seven (7) day work schedule during a fourteen (14) day 
period.  During the fourteen (14) day period, each officer shall work two (2) days on, two (2) 
days off, three (3) days on, two (2) days off, two (2) days on, and three (3) days off.  Police 
officers shall be divided among two different scheduling groups (Watch A and Watch B), 
each of which will maintain this same schedule but will start the repeating cycle on a 
different week.  After ratification of this Agreement by both parties, implementation of the 
new schedule shall occur at the start of the next pay period immediately following the time 
when both shifts complete an 80.5 hour work schedule.  Each patrol officer will have an 
uninterrupted and non-compensated meal break of forty-five (45) minutes.  Due to the City's 
timekeeping system of one quarter (1/4) hour increments, this will result in paid shift length 
of eleven and one half (11 ½) hours per scheduled shift. 

 
The following table exemplifies the above described schedule: 

Patrol 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 
Work Work Off Off Work Work Work 
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday 
Off Off Work Work Off Off Off 
       

 
 
B.  Specialty Positions. The Police Chief shall have the sole discretion to create and 

determine who shall be assigned to specialty and administrative positions. Only those 
specialty positions listed in Section 28 shall receive specialty pay. Work schedules for 
specialty positions as created and determined by management will consist of periods of 
work with fixed starting and ending dates or times whichever is applicable.  The work period 
for all members of the bargaining unit assigned to specialty and administrative positions 
shall consist of eighty and one-half (80.5) hours in a fourteen (14) consecutive day period.  

 
C.  Firefighters.  The work schedule for all Firefighters shall be determined by management.   

Work schedules will consist of periods of work with fixed starting and ending dates or times. 
The work period for all Firefighters shall consist of one hundred-six (106) hours in a fourteen 
(14) consecutive day period. 

 
D.  Sergeants. The work schedule for all members of the bargaining unit holding the rank of 

sergeant who have patrol supervisory responsibility shall consist of a seven (7) day work 



 

schedule during a fourteen (14) day period.  During the fourteen (14) day period, each 
officer shall work two (2) days on, two (2) days off, three (3) days on, two (2) days off, two 
(2) days on, and three (3) days off.  The work schedule for all other members of the 
bargaining unit holding the rank of sergeant shall be determined by management. Work 
schedules will consist of periods of work with fixed starting and ending dates or times 
whichever is applicable.  The work period for all members of the bargaining unit holding the 
rank of sergeant shall consist of eighty and one-half (80.5) hours in a fourteen (14) 
consecutive day period. 

 
 

                                                                    
                                                                                              Section 16 Original Language  

                                                  
SECTION 16. FIREFIGHTERS SLEEP TIME 

 
A. Firefighters assigned to 24 hour 10 minute-schedule will not be paid for sleep time. 

 
B. Normally scheduled sleep time will be 2200 hours until 0600 hours the following day for 

Firefighters and Fire Lieutenants who are scheduled to work more than 2104.5 hours per 
year. 
 

C. If sleep time is interrupted by a call to duty, the employee will be compensated for a 
minimum of one (1) hour straight time. A call to duty is defined as an incident that 
requires a written report.  
 

D. An employee will be allowed at least five (5) hours sleep during this sleep time. 
However, this time need not be continuous uninterrupted hours. Employees who do not 
receive five (5) hours of sleep time will be compensated for the entire sleep period at 
their normal hourly rate. 

 
 

                                                                                          Section 17 Original Language  
                                             

SECTION 17. STANDBY TIME 
 
Employees who are required by their supervisor and scheduled to be "on standby", meaning 
accessible by telephone or pager, and to return to duty when called, shall be compensated at 
the rate of one (1) hour of their usual pay for every twenty four (24) hours on call. Duties actually 
worked in response to calls shall be compensated at regular time or overtime as applicable. 
When an employee is required to work overtime at hours not adjacent to the employee's normal 
work hours, a minimum of one-hour compensation will be paid. 
 

 
                                                                     Section 18 Original Language  

                                                
SECTION 18. COURT TIME 

Members, who are called in Off Duty for actual court matters, including DVD hearings or pretrial 
conferences, will receive a minimum of one (1) hour of overtime or compensatory time at one 
and one-half (1½) their regulator rate.  Members will continue to be paid or accrue 
compensatory time at a rate of one and one-half (½) times their regular rate for all time required 



 

in court, MVD hearings or pre-trial conferences beyond one (1) hour.  Court time shall be 
considered time worked for regular compensation and overtime compensation purposes. 
 

 
                                                                                              Section 19 Original Language  

 
SECTION 19. OVERTIME 

 
A. "Time Worked" Defined: The following provision constitutes the understanding of the 

parties with respect to defining time worked for the purpose of determining the number of 
hours required for overtime compensation eligibility.  “Time worked” for all members of the 
bargaining unit except Firefighters shall include all hours actually spent performing the 
duties of the assigned job, rounded up or down to the next quarter hour, and court time, but 
explicitly excludes PTO leave, holiday leave, compensatory time, disciplinary action, or 
workers’ compensation.  “Time worked” for Firefighters shall include all hours actually spent 
performing the duties of the assigned job, rounded to the next quarter hour, and explicitly 
excludes PTO leave, holiday leave, compensatory time, disciplinary action, or workers’ 
compensation. 

 
B. Police Officers. Except as provided below, members of the bargaining unit who are 

assigned to and perform the duties of a police officer, including those members who hold the 
rank of sergeant, shall earn overtime at one and one-half (1½) their regular rate of pay when 
working more than 80.5 hours in a 14 consecutive day period. 

 
C. Specialty and Administrative Positions. Members of the bargaining unit assigned to 

specialty and administrative positions, including those members who hold the rank of 
sergeant, shall earn overtime at one and one-half (1½) their regular rate of pay when 
working more than 80.5 in a 14 consecutive day period. 

 
D. Firefighters and Fire Safety Officer Members of the bargaining unit who are assigned to 

and perform the duties of a Firefighters and fire safety officer shall earn overtime at one and 
one-half (1½) their regular rate of pay when working more than 106 hours in a 14 
consecutive day period. 

 
 

                                                                                                Section 20 Original Language  
                      

SECTION 20. SAFETY PROGRAM 
 

The City and the Association agree to use their best efforts to promote and provide a safe work 
environment. The City’s Safety Committee will consist of equal union and management 
representation.  In the event AFSCME does not provide representation, APSOA will be afforded 
the opportunity to provide equal representation. Safety equipment and devices deemed 
appropriate by the City will be furnished and maintained by the City and all employees 
represented by Association agree to properly use said devices and equipment.   

 
 
 



 

                                                                                                Section 21 Original Language  
                                                     

SECTION 21. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 
A. Upon agreement by both the City and the Officer, the Officer’s representative shall be 

allowed to address the grievance/appeal on the Officer’s behalf. 
 
B. As a condition of employment, employees are required to appear as witnesses in grievance 

hearings when requested by the aggrieved employee or by the City. Requests for 
appearance of witnesses will be made through the Human Resources Office. Any employee 
called as a witness during working hours shall be paid at his/her regular rate of pay.  The 
employee shall be required to return to work when he/she is no longer needed as a witness. 

 
C. Employees called as witnesses during time off shall be paid in accordance with the Fair 

Labor Standards Act (FLSA) by the City for the time spent at the hearing. 
 
D. Grievances will be handled in accordance with the City Personnel Manual. 

 
 

                                                                             Section 22 Original Language  
                                               

SECTION 22. INTERNAL AFFAIRS 
 
To insure that investigations by the Internal Affairs Unit are conducted in a manner conducive to 
public confidence, good order, discipline, good management practices, and recognizing the 
individual rights of each member of the department, the investigation will be done in accordance 
to the New Mexico Peace Officer's Employer-Employee Relations Act, Sections 29-14-1 to 29-
14-11 NMSA 1978, et seq., as amended for those members covered by the Act. 

 
 
 

                                                                                                 Section 23 Language Change  
 

SECTION 23. PTO (PAID TIME OFF) 
 
A. A leave conversion to PTO Leave will be implemented within ninety (90) days of ratification 

of this agreement, with an initial target date of November 13, 2014.  Bargaining unit 
employees will total up all current sick time, floating holiday, and vacation time and convert 
to a PTO (Paid Time Off) system.  The provided chart will serve as the accrual rate. If the 
maximum hours balance is greater than the current allowed maximum hours, the current 
number will serve as their maximum carry over hours until the employee reaches the current 
maximum balance.  If the employee drops below their higher maximum balance, that 
number will serve as their maximum balance until the balance is according to provided chart. 



 

(PROVIDED COPY OF PTO CHART) 
 
APSOA PTO ACCRUAL CHART FY 2015  
          

YOS 8HR VAC 
8HR 
SICK 8FH 

TOTAL 
HRS 

TOTAL 
DAYS 

PP 
ACCRUAL 

CARRY 
OVER 
MAX 

CONV 
MAX MIN BAL 

0-5 80 80 8 168 21 6.46 480 80 240 
6 88 80 8 176 22 6.77 480 80 240 
7 96 80 8 184 23 7.08 480 80 240 
8 104 80 8 192 24 7.38 480 80 240 
9 112 80 8 200 25 7.69 480 80 240 

10-15 120 80 8 208 26 8.00 480 80 240 
16 128 80 8 216 27 8.31 480 80 240 
17 136 80 8 224 28 8.62 480 80 240 
18 144 80 8 232 29 8.92 480 80 240 
19 152 80 8 240 30 9.23 480 80 240 

20+ 160 80 8 248 31 9.54 480 80 240 
          

YOS 
10HR 
VAC 

10HR 
SICK 10FH 

TOTAL 
HRS 

TOTAL 
DAYS 

PP 
ACCRUAL 

CARRY 
OVER 
MAX 

CONV 
MAX MIN BAL 

0-5 100 100 10 210 21 8.08 600 100 300 
6 110 100 10 220 22 8.46 600 100 300 
7 120 100 10 230 23 8.85 600 100 300 
8 130 100 10 240 24 9.23 600 100 300 
9 140 100 10 250 25 9.62 600 100 300 

10-15 150 100 10 260 26 10.00 600 100 300 
16 160 100 10 270 27 10.38 600 100 300 
17 170 100 10 280 28 10.77 600 100 300 
18 180 100 10 290 29 11.15 600 100 300 
19 190 100 10 300 30 11.54 600 100 300 

20+ 200 100 10 310 31 11.92 600 100 300 
          
 
          

          
 
 
 
          

YOS 
11.5HR 
VAC 

11.5HR 
SICK 11.5FH 

TOTAL 
HRS 

TOTAL 
DAYS 

PP 
ACCRUAL 

CARRY 
OVER 
MAX 

CONV 
MAX MIN BAL 

0-5 115.0 115 11.5 241.5 21 9.29 690 115 350 
6 126.5 115 11.5 253.0 22 9.73 690 115 350 
7 138.0 115 11.5 264.5 23 10.17 690 115 350 
8 149.5 115 11.5 276.0 24 10.62 690 115 350 
9 161.0 115 11.5 287.5 25 11.06 690 115 350 

10-15 172.5 115 11.5 299.0 26 11.50 690 115 350 
16 184.0 115 11.5 310.5 27 11.94 690 115 350 
17 195.5 115 11.5 322.0 28 12.38 690 115 350 
18 207.0 115 11.5 333.5 29 12.83 690 115 350 
19 218.5 115 11.5 345.0 30 13.27 690 115 350 



 

20+ 230.0 115 11.5 356.5 31 13.71 690 115 350 
          

YOS 
16.25HR 
VAC 

16.25HR 
SICK 16.25FH 

TOTAL 
HRS 

TOTAL 
DAYS 

PP 
ACCRUAL 

CARRY 
OVER 
MAX 

CONV 
MAX MIN BAL 

0-5 86.25 120 16.25 222.50 13.69 8.56 600 120 300 
6 94.88 120 16.25 231.13 14.22 8.89 600 120 300 
7 103.50 120 16.25 239.75 14.75 9.22 600 120 300 
8 112.13 120 16.25 248.38 15.28 9.55 600 120 300 
9 120.75 120 16.25 257.00 15.82 9.88 600 120 300 

10-15 129.38 120 16.25 265.63 16.35 10.22 600 120 300 
16 138.00 120 16.25 274.25 16.88 10.55 600 120 300 
17 146.63 120 16.25 282.88 17.41 10.88 600 120 300 
18 155.25 120 16.25 291.50 17.94 11.21 600 120 300 
19 163.88 120 16.25 300.13 18.47 11.54 600 120 300 

20+ 172.50 120 16.25 308.75 19.00 11.88 600 120 300 

          

YOS 8 HR 10 HR 11.5 HR 
16.25 
HR      

0-5 168 210 241.5 222.50      
6 176 220 253.0 231.13      
7 184 230 264.5 239.75      
8 192 240 276.0 248.38      
9 200 250 287.5 257.00      

10-15 208 260 299.0 265.63      
16 216 270 310.5 274.25      
17 224 280 322.0 282.88      
18 232 290 333.5 291.50      
19 240 300 345.0 300.13      

20+ 248 310 356.5 308.75      
 

 
PTO accrues from the first day of employment but may not be taken during the first six 
months of probation, unless approved by the Chief/Director of their Department. Each 
accrual rate will start on the anniversary date of the year as reflected on the chart.  For non-
shift employees, when a legal holiday that would have been a regular work day for the 
employee occurs during PTO, it shall not be charged as PTO leave but as a holiday. Hours 
worked in addition to the regularly scheduled workweek will not entitle an employee to 
additional PTO benefits. Employees may only earn PTO hours up to the maximum per year 
listed in the above chart.  Pay period accrual is based on a regular schedule of work hours. 

 
B. PTO requests shall be considered on a first-come first-served basis. If two or more 

employees submit a request for PTO at the same time for the same time period, approval 
will be granted on the basis of seniority by classification within the work unit and shift 
assignment, as staffing levels provide. 

 
C. Based on the employees current work assignment the maximum hours of accrued PTO 

according to above chart will be allowed to be carried forward to any new fiscal year. 
Exception:  In special cases, an employee having previously scheduled PTO near the end 
of a fiscal year and is unable to take scheduled PTO because of circumstances beyond their 



 

control, the City Manager may permit PTO in excess of maximum to be carried forward into 
the new Fiscal Year. However, such excess must be taken during the first six-(6) months of 
the new fiscal year.   

 
D. Employees terminating either voluntarily or involuntarily are entitled to compensation for 

accrued PTO after (5) years of employment up to 240 hours except under the conditions 
outlined in Section E.  

 
E. Upon termination of employment for reasons not covered in Section D (death, retirement) an 

employee or their beneficiary will be paid for up to 280 hours accrued PTO.  Payment for 
unused PTO shall be at the employee’s regular rate of pay at the time of termination in 
these cases. 

 
F. Excess hours of PTO over the above 240 hours or 280 hours will be forfeited upon 

separation.  
 
G. Advanced pay may be obtained by an employee prior to leaving on PTO, if at least two (2) 

weeks notice is given to the Chief/ Director of their Department and approved by the City 
Manager. 

 
H. Employees, who donate PTO in accordance with the City Personnel Manual, will be charged 

hour for hour for donations with a minimum donation of eight (8) hours. 
 
I. PTO Conversion.  Employees who have reached the accumulation levels listed above may 

exercise the available option. The option to convert PTO hours will only be available to 
employees (4) times during a fiscal year.  Employees may convert a maximum according to 
the above chart during the fiscal year with a minimum of eight (8) hours per each 
occurrence.  The following conversion formula will be used to convert accumulated PTO on 
a three (3) for two (2) cash payment exchange rate. 

 
 

                                                                   Section 24 Original Language  
                                               

SECTION 24. HOLIDAY PAY 
 

A. The following days shall be observed as holidays for employees who work shift work: 
 
 New Years Day – January 1st  
 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day – 3rd Monday in January 
 President’s Day – 3rd Monday in February 
 Memorial Day – Last Monday in May 
 Independence Day – July 4th 
 Labor Day – 1st Monday in September 
 Thanksgiving – 4th Thursday in November 
 Day After Thanksgiving – (in lieu of Veterans’ Day) 
 Christmas – December 25th 
 

For employees assigned to work business hours, such as Station Officer, Public Relations, 
Administrative, and Detective Sergeants, SROs, Detectives, and NEU Officers, the same 
holiday schedule used by other City employees will apply. 
 



 

For employees assigned to work shifts (Days, Swings, Nights) such as Patrol Officers, 
Patrol Sergeants, and Fire service personnel, for purposes of determining holiday pay, the 
observed holiday as listed above will be deemed to start at 0700 hours on the day of the 
observed holiday and end twenty-four (24) hours later at 0700 hours. 

 
The following apply to all employees regardless of the scheduled hours: 
 
B. When a holiday falls on a day that the employee is scheduled to work, the employee will 

receive the day off when the Chief/ Director of their Department determines this to be 
possible and the employee will be paid his or her regular hourly rate for the number of hours 
they were scheduled to work that day. 

 
C. Except for employees assigned to work shifts, when a holiday falls on a day that the 

employee is scheduled to work and the Chief/ Director of their Department determines it is 
not possible for the employee to have the day off, the employee will be compensated for the 
entire time he or she works on the observed holiday at two and a half (2.5) times their 
regular rate of pay.  For employees assigned to work shifts (Days, Swings, Nights) such as 
Patrol Officers, Patrol Sergeants, and Fire service personnel, holiday pay shall only be paid 
to an employee whose shift starts on or after 0700 hours on the day of the observed holiday 
and ends before 0700 hours on the following calendar day. 

 
D. All employees not scheduled to work on the actual holiday, but who are called into work on 

the actual holiday, will be compensated at two and a half (2.5) times their rate of pay for all 
time worked, but for a minimum of one (1) hour on the actual holiday.  For example, if 
Christmas Day is Sunday, December 25, the Detective Sergeant is usually off on Sunday 
and would receive holiday pay and the day off on Monday.  If the Detective Sergeant is 
called out on Sunday, the actual Christmas holiday, they would receive two and a half (2.5) 
times their regular rate of pay for all time they work on the actual holiday. 

 
 
 

       Section 25 Original Language  
                                               

SECTION 25. BILINGUAL PAY 
 
A. Only those languages recognized by the Chief, as adding to the increased productivity and 

efficiency of the Department will be considered for Bilingual Pay. 
 
B. Human Resources will establish the standards for certification of bilingual proficiency.  Only 

those showing proficiency and meeting the staffing needs established by the Chief will be 
given Bilingual Pay.  

 
C. Employees receiving Bilingual Pay may be asked to test annually to assure continued 

proficiency. 
 
D. Employees certified by the Chief as meeting all of the above criteria will receive $.31 per 

hour during the time they are serving in that capacity. When they cease to serve in that 
capacity they will revert to their base pay level. 

 



 

 
                                                             Section 26 Original Language  

                                            
 

SECTION 26. EDUCATION INCENTIVE 
 
Employees covered under the terms of this contract are not eligible for tuition assistance.   
 
In lieu of this assistance, subject to the availability of funds, employees covered under the terms 
of this contract that possess a degree that is directly related to the employee’s profession, skill, 
or craft and demonstrates a benefit to the City from an accredited university will receive a 
financial incentive in December of each year.  The determination for applicability of the degree 
will be at the discretion of the department director.  Only one incentive will be paid per year 
based on the highest held degree that is applicable as determined by the department director. 
 
  The incentives are as follows: 
 
  Associates Degree $100/year 
  Bachelors Degree $250/year 
 
In order to receive the educational incentive, a copy of the certified, original transcript confirming 
the degree must be provided to the Chief prior to November 15th to qualify for the incentive.  
Proof of degree need only be provided upon initial implementation of the incentive for each 
employee 
 
 
                                                                                 T/A Section 27 Language Change 
                        Date____________________________ 
 
                                               SECTION 27. FINANCIAL PACKAGE 
 

A. Classification 
1. Police Officers.  Effective the first day following ratification and 

approval of this agreement all Public Safety Officers shall be reclassified as 
Police Officers and will be assigned to a classification based upon their 
consecutive years of certified service with the Department.  Each current Police 
Officer will be given one (1) year of service credit for each consecutive year of 
certified service with the Department.  Additional service credit will be given at 
the rate of one (1) year of service credit for each year of actual commissioned 
service to a maximum of three (3) years to any current Police Officer for 
commissioned full-time service with any other law enforcement agency located 
within the State of New Mexico which requires as a condition of employment 
police officer certification by the State of New Mexico.  Fractional service credit 
for any such commissioned service shall be rounded down. 

Patrol Officer Service Credit  Senior Patrolman Service Credit 
P-1 Less than 1 year  P-11 10 to 11 years 
P-2 1 to 2 years  P-12 11 to 12 years 
P-3 2 to 3 years  P-13 12 to 13 years 
P-4 3 to 4 years  P-14 13 to 14 years 
P-5 4 to 5 years  P-15 14 to 15 years 



 

   P-16 15 to 16 years 
   P-17 16 to 17 years 
Advanced Patrol Ofc. Service Credit  P-18 17 to 18 years 
P-6 5 to 6 years  P-19 18 to 19 years 
P-7 6 to 7 years  P-20 19 to 20 years 
P-8 7 to 8 years  P-21 20 to 21 years 
P-9 8 to 9 year  P-22 21 to 22 years 
P-10 9 to 10 years  P-23 22 to 23 years 
   P-24 23 to 24 years 
   P-25 More than 24 years 

2. Probationary Police Officers as of the effective date of this 
agreement and Future Hires. This Section shall apply to individual Police 
Officers who were still in probationary status as of the effective date of this 
agreement, and those hired thereafter.  Upon completion of their certification, a 
Police Officer with no prior service credit shall be classified as P-1.  Police 
Officers hired after the ratification and approval of this Agreement who hold a 
current and valid certification as a police officer by the State of New Mexico and 
who were previously employed full-time as a commissioned police officer for 
more than one year by a law enforcement agency located within the State of New 
Mexico, will be assigned a classification reflecting service equivalent to their 
actual years of commissioned service to a maximum of three (3) years. 
Fractional service credit for any such commissioned service shall be rounded 
down. 

3. Sergeants. Effective the first date of this agreement all Police 
Officers holding the rank of sergeant shall be assigned to a classification as set 
forth below.  Sergeants will be assigned to a classification based upon their 
consecutive years of service with the Department at the rank of sergeant.  Each 
current sergeant will be given one (1) year of service credit for each consecutive 
year of actual service with the Department.  Police Officers promoted to the rank 
of sergeant after July 1, 2014 shall be classified as S-1. 

Classification Service Credit  Classification Service Credit 
S-1 Less than 1 year  S-11 10 to 11 years 
S-2 1 to 2 years  S-12 11 to 12 years 
S-3 2 to 3 years  S-13 12 to 13 years 
S-4 3 to 4 years  S-14 13 to 14 years 
S-5 4 to 5 years  S-15 14 to 15 years 
S-6 5 to 6 years  S-16 15 to 16 years 
S-7 6 to 7 years  S-17 16 to 17 years 
S-8 7 to 8 years  S-18 17 to 18 years 
S-9 8 to 9 year  S-19 18 to 19 years 
S-10 9 to 10 years  S-20 More than 19 years 

4. Firefighters. Effective the first date of this agreement, all Fire 
Equipment Operators and Fire Safety Officers shall be reclassified as Firefighters 
and assigned to a classification based upon their consecutive years of service 
with the Department.  Said members will be given one (1) year of service credit 
for each consecutive year of actual service with the Department.  Future hires 
shall be classified as F-1. 

 



 

Classification Service Credit  Classification Service Credit 
F-1 Less than 1 year  F-14 13 to 14 years 
F-2 1 to 2 years  F-15 14 to 15 years 
F-3 2 to 3 years  F-16 15 to 16 years 
F-4 3 to 4 years  F-17 16 to 17 years 
F-5 4 to 5 years  F-18 17 to 18 years 
F-6 5 to 6 years  F-19 18 to 19 years 
F-7 6 to 7 years  F-20 19 to 20 years 
F-8 7 to 8 years  F-21 20 to 21 years 
F-9 8 to 9 year  F-22 21 to 22 years 
F-10 9 to 10 years  F-23 22 to 23 years 
F-11 10 to 11 years  F-24 23 to 24 years 
F-12 11 to 12 years  F-25 More than 24 years 
F-13 12 to 13 years    

5. Fire Lieutenants. Effective the first date of this agreement, all 
Firefighters holding the rank of lieutenant will be assigned to a classification 
based upon their consecutive years of service with the Department at the rank of 
Fire Lieutenant.  Each current Fire Lieutenant will be given one (1) year of 
service credit for each consecutive year of actual service as a Fire Lieutenant 
with the Department.  Any Firefighter promoted to the rank of lieutenant after July 
1, 2014 shall be classified as L-1. 

Classification Service Credit  Classification Service Credit 
L-1 Less than 1 year  L-14 13 to 14 years 
L-2 1 to 2 years  L-15 14 to 15 years 
L-3 2 to 3 years  F-16 15 to 16 years 
L-4 3 to 4 years  F-17 16 to 17 years 
L-5 4 to 5 years  F-18 17 to 18 years 
L-6 5 to 6 years  F-19 18 to 19 years 
L-7 6 to 7 years  F-20 19 to 20 years 
L-8 7 to 8 years  F-21 20 to 21 years 
L-9 8 to 9 year  F-22 21 to 22 years 
L-10 9 to 10 years  F-23 22 to 23 years 
L-11 10 to 11 years  F-24 23 to 24 years 
L-12 11 to 12 years  F-25 More than 24 years 
L-13 12 to 13 years    

B. Wages/Salary. Effective the first day of the first full pay period following 
ratification of this agreement, all non-probationary members of the 
Association will receive the rate of pay specified for their assigned 
classification as follows. 

Police Officer Hourly Wage Steps   
Step 1 2 3 4 5 

 17.4000 17.6610 17.9259 18.1948 18.4677 

Step 6 7 8 9 10 

 18.7447 19.0259 19.3113 19.6010 19.8950 

Step 11 12 13 14 15 

 20.1934 20.4963 20.8038 21.1158 21.4325 

Step 16 17 18 19 20 

 21.7540 22.0803 22.4116 22.7477 23.0889 

Step 21 22 23 24 25 

 23.4352 23.7868 24.1436 24.5057 24.8733 

Sergeant Hourly Wage Steps    
Step 1 2 3 4 5 

 23.1636 23.5111 23.8637 24.2217 24.5850 



 

Step 6 7 8 9 10 

 24.9538 25.3281 25.7080 26.0936 26.4850 

Step 11 12 13 14 15 

 26.8823 27.2855 27.6948 28.1102 28.5319 

Step 16 17 18 19 20 

  28.9599 29.3943 29.8352 30.2827 30.7370 

 

Firefighter Wage Steps 
Step 1 2 3 4 5 

 11.0928 11.2592 11.4281 11.5995 11.7735 

Step 6 7 8 9 10 

 11.9501 12.1293 12.3113 12.4960 12.6834 

      

Step 11 12 13 14 15 

 12.8736 13.0668 13.2628 13.4617 13.6636 

Step 16 17 18 19 20 

 13.8686 14.0766 14.2878 14.5021 14.7196 

Step 21 22 23 24 25 

 14.9404 15.1645 15.3920 15.6228 15.8572 

 

Fire Lieutenant Wage Steps 
Step 1 2 3 4 5 

 14.7500 14.9712 15.1958 15.4237 15.6551 

Step 6 7 8 9 10 

 15.8899 16.1283 16.3702 16.6158 16.8650 

Step 11 12 13 14 15 

 17.1180 17.3747 17.6354 17.8999 18.1684 

Step 16 17 18 19 20 

 18.4409 18.7175 18.9983 19.2833 19.5725 

Step 21 22 23 24 25 

 19.8661 20.1641 20.4667 20.7736 21.0852 

C. Specialty Pay. Effective the first day of the first pay period, following 
ratification and execution of this agreement by both parties, Police Officers 
assigned to the specialty positions of detective, detective sergeant, training 
officer, narcotics agent, narcotics sergeant, field training officer (FTO), SWAT 
officer, training officer, training sergeant, community relations officer, and school 
resource officer, shall be advanced two steps during the period of such 
assignment. No police officer, regardless of rank and regardless of the number of 
specialty assignments, shall be advanced more than two steps. The additional 
compensation shall be paid only during the period of such assignment. Police 
Officers receiving the Specialty Pay will be returned to their regular rate of pay 
based on their classification when the reassignment as a specialist is ended.  

D. Benefits 
1. Group Health Insurance. The City has group medical insurance 

plans that are offered to City employees. The employee will be advised of the 



 

plans at the employee orientation. The City will pay 60% of the group medical 
premiums on the plans offered by the City. The employee who chooses to 
participate in these plans will pay the remaining 40% of the cost of the plans. 
 

2. PERA Contribution. The City shall continue to make the increased 
contribution for Members of the Association covered by PERA Municipal Police 
Plan 5 and Municipal Fire Plan 5 as specified in Resolution No. 2000-23. 
 

3. Other Existing Practices and/or Benefits. Existing practices 
and/or benefits provided by Ordinance or Resolution of the City Commission, or 
as provided in the City’s Personnel Manual and the MOU between the City and 
APSOA dated August 17, 2012, and which are not in conflict with a specific 
provision of this Agreement shall continue to be provided in accordance with the 
terms of the Ordinance, Resolution, MOU or Personnel Manual. 

 
 4. Recreational Facilities Benefit. All employees who are covered 
by this bargaining unit shall be permitted to use the City’s recreational facilities 
and equipment, including the swimming pool, that are located at its Recreational 
Center at no cost to the Employee.  Family members and guests will be required 
to pay the normal charges.  Employees will be given a twenty percent (20%) 
discount on any recreational activity or other programs offered or sponsored by 
the City's Community Services Department.  The discount applies only to the 
participation of the employee, the employee’s spouse or the employee's minor 
dependent(s).  Participation at the discounted rate will only be available in the 
event the program has available space.  Employees shall be given the "junior golf 
green fee rate" at the City's golf course, the Desert Lakes Golf Course.  Family 
members and guests will be required to pay the normal charges.  Rental charges 
for golf carts and other charges or fees will be at the normal rate. 

 
E. Longevity Bonus. A longevity bonus of $750.00 will be paid to all employees  
 who are covered by this bargaining unit who were employed by the City as either 
 a police officer (public safety officer) or firefighter (fire equipment operator and 
 fire safety officers) prior to July 1, 2013.  The bonus will be included in either the 
 first payroll of September 2014, or the second payroll of September 2014. 
 
 

                                                                                             Section 28 Language Change 
 

SECTION 28. PHYSICAL FITNESS PAY 
 
All employees covered by the agreement will be eligible for a physical fitness incentive based on 
base pay.  The amount of the hourly incentive will be as specified in the charts outlined below.  
However, the maximum incentive amount is 4% of hourly base pay.   The hourly incentive will 
become effective the first pay period after July 1, 2014, or the first full pay period after the 
physical fitness test is passed if the member passes the test after the beginning of the fiscal 
year. This incentive expires on the last pay period of the fiscal year.  The physical fitness testing 
is voluntary and the incentive will not be given to employees who do not satisfactorily complete 



 

the agreed upon standards. 
 
The City will conduct a minimum of one physical fitness test during the first quarter of each 
calendar year.  Nothing herein prevents additional make up tests being done at the discretion of 
the Chief of their Department at anytime during the year for any covered employees. 
 
Prior to testing, each member of the bargaining unit wishing to participate must provide a 
medical release authorizing participation in the physical fitness test.  This medical release will 
be at the expense of the member and the medical release must have been acquired within the 
previous twelve (12) months from the test date.  If a member experiences an event since they 
last received a medical release that could affect their ability to safely perform the test, a new 
medical release will be required. 
 
The method for testing and each evolution will be agreed upon in writing between the Chief of 
their Department and APSOA President prior to testing.   
 
The physical fitness test will include sit-ups, push-ups, a 1.5 mile run, and a 300 meter run for 
Police Officers and Firefighters.  The physical fitness test is on a two-tiered, pass-or-fail system 
and minimum standards are as follows: 
 
TIER 1: 
In order to receive an incentive based on 2% of the hourly base pay amount, participants must 
pass the following standards: 
 
Push-ups in 1 minute      Sit-ups in 1 minute 
Age Male Female  Age Male Female 
18-29 26 20  <20 38 29 
30-39 20 15  20-29 35 30 
40-49 15 10  30-39 32 22 
50-59 10 9  40-49 27 17 
60+ 8 3  50-59 21 12 
    60+ 17 4 

 
1.5 Mile Run         300 Meter Run 
Age Male Female  Age Male Female 
18-29 13:35 16:23  18-29 62.1 75.0 
30-39 14:15 17:13  30-39 63.0 82.0 
40-49 15:00 18:53  40-49 77.0 106.7 
50-59 16:43 20:44  50-59 87.0 106.7 
60+ 19:06 23:01  60+ 87.0 106.7 

 
TIER 2: 
In order to receive an incentive based on 4% of the hourly base pay amount, participants must 
pass the following standards: 
 
Push-ups in 1 minute      Sit-ups in 1 minute 
Age Male Female  Age Male Female 
18-29 29 23  <20 41 32 
30-39 24 19  20 - 29 38 32 



 

40-49 18 13  30-39 35 25 
50-59 13 12  40-49 29 20 
60+ 10 5  50-59 24 14 
    60+ 19 6 

 
1.5 Mile Run        300 Meter Run 
Age Male Female  Age Male Female 
18-29 12:56 15:32  18-29 59.0 71.0 
30-39 13:20 16:23  30-39 58.9 79.0 
40-49 14:17 17:38  40-49 72.0 94.0 
50-59 15:41 19:37  50-59 83.2 94.0 
60+ 17:46 21:22  60+ 83.2 94.0 

	 	
                                                                                        Section 29 Original Language  

                                             
        

SECTION 29. SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
Should any part of this Agreement or any provision contained herein be declared invalid by any 
tribunal of competent jurisdiction, the validity of the remaining portions shall not be affected.  
Should this occur, the parties will immediately meet to negotiate a suitable provision to replace 
the provision held invalid. 
 
 

                                             Section 30 Language Change 
 

SECTION 30. TERM OF AND ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
A. It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that this Agreement is the 

only existing Agreement between the parties and replaces any and all previous Agreements. 
The matters within this agreement may be only amended during the term of the agreement 
by mutual written agreement in the form of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 

 
B. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon its ratification and shall remain in full 

force and effect until June 30, 2015 or until a successor Agreement is ratified by both 
Parties whichever is later. In the event that the City and the Association fail to secure a 
successor Agreement prior to the expiration date of this Agreement, this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and be effective during the period of negotiation.  Provided, however no 
step increases under Section 27 shall take place during FY2015 or after June 30, 2015 at 
11:59 p.m. 

 
C. The Association may seek an Economic reopener in the event of an unforeseen 

economic issue or concern on or about January 1, 2015.  
 
D. Any Agreement provision by the Employer and the Association that requires the expenditure 

of funds shall be contingent upon the specific appropriation for wages and benefits by the 
Governing Body and the availability of funds. 



 

 
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have signed their names and affixed the signature of their 
authorized representatives on this _______ day of _______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
CITY OF ALAMOGORDO    ALAMOGORDO PUBLIC SAFETY 
NEW MEXICO     OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 
 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
James R. Stahle, City Manager   Eliza Fernandez, President, APSOA 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       NMCPSO 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Reneé L. Cantin, City Clerk    Stephen P. Thies, City Attorney 
 
 





















RCantin
Typewritten Text































































RCantin
Typewritten Text













New Material  Deleted Material 

- 1 - 

ORDINANCE NO. 1468 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14, GARBAGE, TRASH AND REFUSE, TO 

ALLOW FOR THE REMOVAL OF ABANDONED, WRECKED, DISMANTLED OR 
INOPERATIVE MOTOR VEHICLES, AND AMENDING CHAPTER 24, TRAFFIC, TO 

ALLOW FOR THE IMPOUNDING AND FORFEITURE OF VEHICLES 
 
 
 
 BE IT THEREFORE ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF ALAMOGORDO NEW MEXICO THAT THE ALAMOGORDO CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BE AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 
 

ARTICLE I 
 
 That Chapter 14 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Alamogordo, New 
Mexico is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Chapter 14 - Garbage, trash and refuse and nuisances 
 

ARTICLE II 
 
 That Section 14-01-140 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Alamogordo, 
New Mexico is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 
14-01-140. - Generally—Outdoor automotive storage. Abandoned, wrecked, dismantled 
or inoperative motor vehicles 
 

(a)  Definitions. As used in this section: The following words, terms and 
phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this 
section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
 

Abandoned means any motor vehicle that does not display a current license 
plate or valid police sticker as defined in section 12-12-18(F)(2) of the Uniform Traffic 
Ordinance and is left unattended on public property for a period exceeding 72 
consecutive hours, or is left unattended on private property for a period exceeding 
fifteen (15) days. 

 
Antique auto means a passenger car or truck that was manufactured in 1925 or 

before, or a passenger car or truck that is at least thirty-five years old. 
 

Dismantled or partially dismantled vehicle means any motor vehicle from which 
some part or parts which are ordinarily a component thereof have been removed or are 
missing rendering the vehicle inoperable.  
 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 2 - 

"Impound" shall mean the towing and storage of a motor vehicle as authorized in 
this section. 
 

Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor vehicle which by reason of 
dismantling, disrepair or other cause is incapable of being propelled by its own power 
and/or any motor vehicle which does not have lawfully affixed thereto an unexpired 
license plate or plates.  
 

Motor vehicle means any wheeled vehicle which is self-propelled and designed 
to travel along the ground and shall include, but not be limited to automobiles, 
commercial motor vehicles, truck-tractors, trailers and semitrailers, heavy equipment, 
buses, motorbikes, motorcycles, motor scooters, trucks, tractors, go-carts, golf carts, 
recreational vehicles and trailers.  
 

"Owner" of a vehicle shall mean the registered owner or owners of a vehicle as 
recorded with the state department of motor vehicles or similar agency of a state 
outside New Mexico. Where written notice to the owner is required by this section, such 
notice shall be given to each registered owner. 
 

“Owner of private property” shall mean the record holder of legal title as shown 
by the official records of the County of Otero unless there exists a contract purchaser of 
record, in which case it means the contract purchaser. 
 

Private property means any real property within the city that is privately owned 
and that is not public property, as defined in this section.  
 

Public property means any street or alleyway or right-of-way or parkway or 
highway, which shall include the entire width between the boundary lines of every way 
publicly maintained for the purposes of vehicular travel, and also means other publicly 
owned property or facility.  

 
Special interest vehicle means a motor vehicle of any age that has not been 

altered or modified from original manufacturer’s specifications and, because of its 
historic interest, is being preserved by hobbyists. 
 

Wrecked means any motor vehicle that is disabled or in a state of ruin or 
dilapidation which renders it inoperable.  

 
(b)  Declared nuisance. The presence of a dismantled, partially dismantled, 

or inoperable vehicle or motor vehicle or parts thereof on any street, occupied or 
unoccupied land within the city limits in violation of the terms of this section is a public 
nuisance.  No person shall park, store, leave or permit the parking, storing, or leaving of 
any motor vehicle of any kind which is in an abandoned or wrecked or dismantled or 
inoperative or partially dismantled condition, whether attended or not, upon any public 
property within the city for a period of time in excess of 72 hours or upon any private 
property within the city for a period of time in excess of fifteen (15) days. The presence 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 3 - 

of an abandoned or wrecked or dismantled or inoperative or partially dismantled vehicle 
or parts thereof (except such parts that have been reconstructed or converted for 
practical use) on public property or private property is declared a public nuisance which 
may be abated in accordance with this article. This section shall not apply to: 
 

(c) Prohibited acts. It is unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to store on, or 
permit to be stored or placed on, or allow to remain on any public or private property or 
street or highway within the city limits a dismantled, partially dismantled or inoperable 
motor vehicle or any parts of a motor vehicle unless such vehicle is in an enclosed 
building or on property which is enclosed with a fence or wall and such vehicle is not 
visible from adjoining or surrounding property or from the street or streets or public 
ways. This section shall not apply to  

(1)  Any vehicle or vehicles on the premises of a duly licensed business 
in zones where such activity is within the contemplated purposes of such duly 
licensed business under the provisions of the zoning ordinance of the city; or 

(2) Any vehicle or vehicle part that is completely enclosed within a 
building or surrounded by a solid or opaque fence or wall, in a lawful manner 
where it is not visible from the street or other public or private property.   
 (3) Any vehicles including operable heavy equipment, or race cars that 
do not normally require registration, so long as they are property stored on a 
licensed, registered trailer. 

(4) Any person who has obtained a permit for restoration of a motor 
vehicle pursuant to subsection 14-01-140(d).   

 
 (c)  On private property covering an inoperable motor vehicle with a cover that is 
custom-tailored or custom-fitted to the particular model of the vehicle being covered will 
abate the nuisance. The vehicle cover shall be made of a canvas of closely woven, 
coarse cloth of hemp, cotton or linen that is both water and mildew resistant and shall 
be maintained free of any tears or holes. To abate the nuisance, the vehicle shall be 
completely covered, with the exception of the vehicle tires, and the cover shall be 
secured by a tie-down device. Tires shall be mounted on the vehicle and shall be 
properly inflated. All four tires must be on the ground. It is the vehicle owner's 
responsibility to ensure that the vehicle remains completely covered. Placing the 
inoperable motor vehicle behind trees or shrubbery does not abate the public nuisance. 
The code enforcement department is authorized to abate such nuisances under the 
terms and conditions hereinafter provided. 
 

(d) Exceptions. Permits for restoration of motor vehicles. An owner or 
tenant, upon payment of a fee of $60.00, may store, permit to be stored or allow 
to remain upon his premises any dismantled, partially dismantled, or inoperable 
motor vehicle antique auto or special interest vehicle or parts thereof, for a period 
not to exceed 18 months sixty (60) days upon receipt of a permit from the city 
clerk if such motor vehicle is registered in his name.   

 
The vehicle and parts shall be stored in a neat and orderly fashion, free 

from leaks or fluid spills, and shall be completely secured (doors lock and 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 4 - 

windows close completely) or covered.  The vehicle and parts shall remain 
covered unless work is currently in progress on the vehicle or part.  Vehicle and 
parts shall be stored in the rear yard of property.  If there is no means of 
vehicular access to the rear of the property, the vehicle and parts may be stored 
in the front of the property in the driveway area only.  No parts or vehicles shall 
be stored in the landscaped areas.   

 
Not more than two (2) permits per location may be issued and outstanding 

at any one time.  Not more than one permit per registered vehicle owner may be 
issued, and such owner must be an occupant of the location listed on the permit. 
The permit(s) shall remain available for inspection upon request.  

 
The restoration permit may be revoked for failure to maintain permit 

requirements after one 15 day notice has been issued for such violation.  
 
(e) Permit. Upon application by the registered owner of a motor vehicle covered 

by this section, and upon the proof of hardship, the city clerk is hereby authorized to 
issue the permit provided by this section and shall require the payment of sixty dollars 
($60.00) for each permit issued.  
 

(e) Notice to remove.  
 1. Whenever it comes to the attention of the police department that any 

nuisance, as defined in subsection 14-01-140(b), exists on public property within 
the city, notice in writing shall be served to the owner of the vehicle or his agent, 
notifying them of the existence of the nuisance and requesting its removal in the 
time specified in this article. 

 
 2. Whenever it comes to the attention of code enforcement that any 

nuisance, as defined in subsection 14-01-140(b), exists on private property within 
the city, notice in writing shall be served to the owner or his agent; or occupant of 
the property, notifying them of the existence of the nuisance and requesting its 
removal in the time specified in this article. 
 

 
(f) Removal of vehicles. Upon the later of the expiration of a permit referenced in 

sub-section (d) or notification of the violation, the department of public safety may, after 
giving written notice to both the person responsible for the property and the vehicle's 
last known owner, order the vehicle towed from the premises.  
 
The notice of towing shall inform an interested party that they may request a hearing 
before the city manager or his designee to show cause why the vehicle is not in 
violation of the ordinance. Requests for hearing must be filed in writing with the city 
manager within ten (10) calendar days of the notice of towing. If a hearing is requested, 
the requesting party shall be given written notice by first class mail of the hearing at 
least ten (10) calendar days before the hearing.  
 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 5 - 

(f) Responsibility for removal. Upon proper notice and opportunity to be 
heard, the owner of the abandoned or wrecked or dismantled or inoperative vehicle and 
the owner or occupant of the private property on which the vehicle is located, either or 
all of them, shall be responsible for its removal.  If the abandoned or wrecked or 
dismantled or inoperative vehicle is located on public property, the owner of the vehicle 
or his agent shall be responsible for its removal. If removal and disposition is performed 
by the city, the owner or occupant of the private property where the vehicle is located 
shall be liable for expenses incurred or, if circumstances are such, the owner of the 
vehicle left on public property. 
 

(g) Notice procedure. Under this article, code enforcement shall give a 30-
day notice of removal to the owner or occupant of the private property where it is 
located. If the nuisance involves a vehicle on public property, notice shall be given to 
the owner of the vehicle or his agent by the police department, at least 72 hours before 
the time of compliance, which shall be set forth in the notice.  It shall constitute sufficient 
notice when a copy of such is posted in a conspicuous place upon the private property 
on which the vehicle is located or a copy of the notice is posted on the vehicle which is 
parked on the public property and duplicate copies are sent by registered mail to the 
owner of the vehicle left on public property or his agent or to the owner or occupant of 
the private property at his last known address.  If notice cannot be given pursuant to this 
section, notice shall be given by publication once in a newspaper of general circulation 
in the community as soon as practicable after reasonable and diligent efforts to give 
notice as provided in this section proves fruitless.  
 

(h) Contents of notice. The notice issued pursuant to this article shall 
contain the request for removal within the time specified in this article, and the notice 
shall advise that upon failure to comply with the notice to remove the city or its 
designee, which may include a wrecker service, shall undertake such removal with the 
cost of removal to be levied against the vehicle.  
 

(i) Request for hearing. Under this article, the persons to whom the notices 
are directed or their duly authorized agents may file a written request for hearing before 
the city manager within the 30-day period of compliance prescribed in subsection 14-01-
140(g) if the nuisance involves a vehicle on private property, or within the 7-day period 
of compliance prescribed in subsection 14-01-140(g) if the nuisance involves a vehicle 
on public property, for the purpose of defending the charges by the city.  
 

(j) Procedure for hearing. The hearing requested pursuant to subsection 
14-01-140(i) shall be held as soon as practicable after the filing of the request, and the 
persons to whom the notices are directed shall be advised of the time and place of the 
hearing at least three days in advance thereof.  
 

(k) Removal of motor vehicle from property. If the violation described in 
the notice has not been remedied within the time period of compliance specified in this 
article, or if a notice requesting hearing is timely filed, a hearing is had and the 
existence of the violation is affirmed by the city manager, the city shall have the right to 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 6 - 

remove the motor vehicle from the premises. It shall be a petty misdemeanor for any 
person to interfere with, hinder, or refuse to allow such person to enter upon the private 
property or public property for the purpose of removing a vehicle under this article.  
 

(l) Notice of removal. Within 48 hours of the removal of such vehicle as 
provided in subsection 14-01-140(k), the city shall give notice to the registered owner of 
the vehicle, if known, and also to the owner or occupant of the private property, if 
applicable, from which the vehicle was removed, that the vehicle has been impounded 
and stored for violation of this article.  The notice shall give the location where the 
vehicle is stored and the costs incurred by the city for removal. 
 

(m) Insofar as the provisions of this chapter are inconsistent with the 
provisions of section 12-12-18(F)(2) of the Uniform Traffic Ordinance, this chapter is 
controlling. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 
 That the title of Chapter 24 of the Alamogordo Code of Ordinances is amended 
to read as follows: 
 
 
Chapter 24 - Traffic, vehicle forfeiture and impounding of vehicles 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 
 That the Alamogordo Code of Ordinances, Chapter 24, Traffic, is amended to 
add the following new Article 24-02, Vehicle Forfeiture, to read as follows: 
 

24-02 Vehicle Forfeiture. 
 
24-02-010.  Purpose. 
The purpose of this article is to protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of 
the City of Alamogordo by reducing the risk of harm to the public posed by individuals 
driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs through the forfeiture of motor vehicles 
whose operators are driving under the influence in violation of the law or have violated 
ignition interlock restrictions. 
 
 
24-02-020.  Vehicle Nuisance. 
A motor vehicle is hereby declared to be a public nuisance if it is: 
 

A. Operated by a person who is arrested for a driving under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol (hereinafter “DWI”) offense; or  

 
B. Operated by a person whose license is currently revoked or denied as a 

result of a DWI arrest or conviction prohibiting them from driving, and/or 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 7 - 

whose license is conditioned upon the use of an ignition interlock device, and 
the terms and conditions of these restrictions are violated. 

 
 
24-02-030.  Vehicles Subject to Forfeiture. 
Except as otherwise provided herein, any motor vehicle which has been declared a 
public nuisance as defined in this article shall be subject to civil temporary seizure or 
permanent forfeiture proceedings as set forth in this article. 
 
 
24-02-040. Seizure; Forfeiture Proceeding. 

A. Motor vehicles subject to forfeiture under this section may be seized by any 
police officer of the city upon an order issued by the district court. 

B. Seizure without such order may be made if seizure is incident to an arrest of 
the driver of the vehicle either for driving while intoxicated or for driving while 
his or her license is suspended or revoked as a result of a DWI arrest or 
conviction. 

C. A vehicle temporarily seized under this section shall not be subject to 
replevin, but is deemed to be in the custody of the police department seizing it 
subject only to the orders and decrees of the district court. The police 
department may take custody of the vehicle and remove it to appropriate and 
official locations within the district court’s jurisdiction for disposition in 
accordance with this section. The police department shall establish 
reasonable towing and storage fees for vehicles temporarily seized in 
accordance with this section. 

D. At the time of seizure, the police department shall serve a copy of the notice 
of forfeiture upon the operator of the vehicle. A copy of the notice of forfeiture 
shall be mailed postage prepaid to the lawfully registered owner as verified by 
the New Mexico motor vehicle division on the next city business day following 
the arrest. The notice shall include the following: 
(1)  The license plate number, make, type and color of the vehicle; 
(2)  The location from which the vehicle was temporarily seized; 
(3) A statement that the vehicle has been taken into custody and 

stored; 
(4) The reason for temporary seizure; 
(5) A name, phone number and title of the city employee from whom 

the owner can obtain further information; 
(6) A statement that daily storage charges shall be assessed in 

addition to a towing charge; 
(7) A statement that the owner has the right to contest the validity of 

the impoundment by requesting a hearing in writing within fifteen 
(15) city business days of the date of mailing of the notice of 
forfeiture; and 

(8) A copy of this section. 
 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 8 - 

E. The owner may request that a hearing be scheduled before a hearing officer, 
appointed by the city manager or request an alternative as set forth in 
subsection 24-02-050. The hearing shall be held within fifteen (15) city 
business days of receipt of the request unless the hearing is continued with 
agreement of the parties. The hearing shall be informal and not bound by the 
technical rules of evidence. The hearing officer shall only determine whether 
the police officer had probable cause to arrest the operator of the vehicle and 
probable cause to seize the vehicle pursuant to this section. The hearing 
officer shall mail or deliver written notice of this or her decision to the owner 
within two (2) city business days of the hearing. 

F. If the hearing officer finds that the police officer did not have probable cause 
to arrest the operator and seize the vehicle, the vehicle shall be released. The 
hearing officer shall provide a written certificate of release to the owner of the 
vehicle. Upon receipt of the owner’s copy of such certificate, the city shall 
release the vehicle to its owner or the owner’s agent and storage fees shall 
be waived. If the owner fails to present such certificate to the city employee 
having custody of the vehicle within seventy-two (72) hours of its receipt, 
excluding non-city business days, the owner shall assume liability for all 
subsequent storage charges. The certificate shall advise the owner of such 
requirement. Any vehicle not recovered by the owner within thirty (30) 
calendar days after being notified by the city that such vehicles has been 
released by the city shall be deemed abandoned and disposed of in 
accordance with the notice provisions of Section 29-1-14 NMSA 1978. 

G. If the hearing officer determines that there was probable cause to arrest the 
operator of the vehicle and that the vehicle was properly seized, the city shall 
promptly file a verified petition in district court to abate the public nuisance 
and forfeit the vehicle pursuant to Section 30-8-8 NMSA 1978. 

H. Any person who, pursuant to the records of the motor vehicle division of the 
state taxation and revenue department, has an ownership or security interest 
in the vehicle subject to forfeiture with notice of the verified complaint in 
district court. 

I. When property is forfeiture pursuant to a district court judgment, the police 
department shall sell the motor vehicle, and the proceeds shall be used to 
carry out the purpose and intent of this section. Any proceeds that exceed the 
costs of administering this section shall be used for DWI enforcement, 
prevention and education. Any proceeds from the sale of abandoned vehicles 
pursuant to this section shall be used to carry out the purpose and intent of 
this section. However, the police department and the fire department each 
may keep up to six vehicles at a time for official police department purposes 
as set forth in department policies approved by the city manager. 

J. Any owner of a forfeited vehicle shall not be permitted to purchase the vehicle 
when offered for sale by the city. 

K. At any time subsequent to seizure and prior to the entry of a district court 
judgment, the owner of a motor vehicle seized under this ordinance may 
retrieve personal property (other than the motor vehicle) from the motor 
vehicle. The police department shall allow an owner to retrieve personal 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 9 - 

property within seventy-two (72) hours, excluding non-city business days, of 
contacting the police department. 

 
 
24-02-050.  Alternatives to Forfeiture. 

A. The following procedures shall apply if the owner of the vehicle was not the 
operator of the vehicle subject to the forfeiture: 
(1) There shall be no forfeiture if the operator had no prior DWI history. 
(2) Upon the first seizure of the vehicle, if the owner demonstrates by 

notarized affidavit that the owner of the vehicle had no prior knowledge 
of the operator’s DWI history, no action shall be taken against the 
vehicle. The affidavit shall remain on file with the city. 

(3) Upon the second seizure of the same vehicle, if the owner 
demonstrates by notarized affidavit that the owner of the vehicle had 
no prior knowledge of the operator’s DWI history, the vehicle shall be 
immobilized for a period of thirty (30) calendar days and shall not be 
forfeited. 

(4) Upon the third seizure of the same vehicle, the vehicle shall be subject 
to the forfeiture under this section if the operator is arrested for DWI or 
for driving on a license revoked or denied as a result of an arrest or 
conviction for DWI. 

B. The following procedures shall apply to an owner who is properly licensed but 
is arrested for driving while intoxicated: 
(1) An owner who has never been convicted of DWI may elect in lieu 
 of forfeiture to have installed at the owner’s expense an ignition     

interlock device approved by the New Mexico Department of 
Transportation Traffic Safety Bureau and/or to have the vehicle 
immobilized for the period of time during which the charges are 
pending, and, if convicted, for as long as thereafter required by the 
court. 

(2) An owner whose arrest for DWI does not result in a conviction for  
 DWI shall not have his or her vehicle forfeited. 
(3) If the records of the activity of the ignition interlock device prior to 

adjudication of the DWI charge show alcohol use by any operator, 
regardless whether it is the owner whose use was originally to be a 
nuisance, the vehicle shall be returned to the police department within 
twenty-four (24) hours of notification to the owner by the police 
department, to be impounded until the DWI charge is resolved, and the 
police department may assess additional towing and storage charges. 
If the owner fails to return the vehicle within twenty-four (24) hours 
after notification of an ignition interlock violation, the owner shall be 
deemed to have abandoned all alternatives to forfeiture and the vehicle 
shall be subject to forfeiture proceedings. 

C. The following procedures shall apply to an owner who is not properly licensed 
but is arrested for driving on a license revoked or denied as a result of a DWI 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 10 - 

arrest or conviction, and is not also arrested at the same time for a second or 
subsequent DWI: 
(1) An owner who, according to the records of the New Mexico motor 

vehicle division at the time of arrest, had completed the period of 
revocation imposed by the motor vehicle and was eligible to have his or 
her license reinstated with or without an ignition interlock, may elect in 
lieu of forfeiture to obtain a valid license (which may contain an ignition 
interlock restriction) within thirty (30) calendar days of arrest and within 
that time pay towing, storage and administrative fees set by the police 
department to have the motor vehicle returned to the owner. 

(2) If the owner needs to install an ignition interlock in the motor vehicle to 
obtain an ignition interlock license: 

  (a) The ignition interlock shall be installed at the police 
department impound lot; 

  (b) The owner shall sign an agreement with the police 
department allowing the owner to remove the motor vehicle from the lot 
for the purpose of obtaining the ignition interlock license within twenty-
four (24) hours of removal of the motor vehicle, which agreement shall 
confess forfeiture of the motor vehicle upon any default by the owner of 
any terms of the agreement. The agreement shall provide, in addition to 
any other reasonable provisions, that: 

(i) The owner shall report within twenty-four (24) hours of 
removal whether the owner has obtained the required interlock 
license; 

(ii) If the interlock license has not been obtained, the owner 
shall have the remainder of the thirty (30) days to attempt to get 
the interlock license; 

(iii) If it is not possible to obtain the interlock license, the vehicle 
shall be subject to forfeiture and may be seized by the police 
department if not returned within twenty-four (24) hours of 
removal; and 

(iv) If the records of the activity of the ignition interlock device 
during the period of time required by the Motor Vehicle Division 
show alcohol use by any operator, regardless whether it is the 
owner whose use was originally declared to be a nuisance, the 
vehicle shall be returned to the police department within twenty-
four (24) hours of notification to the owner by the police 
department, to be immobilized for a period of sixty (60) days for 
the first incident of alcohol use, and the police department may 
assess additional towing, storage and immobilization charges. If 
the owner fails to return the vehicle within twenty-four (24) hours 
after notification of an ignition interlock violation, or if there is a 
second incident of alcohol use, the owner shall be deemed to 
have abandoned all alternatives to forfeiture and the vehicle shall 
be subject to forfeiture proceedings. 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 11 - 

(3) An owner who has previously had his or her motor vehicle returned 
under this section shall be ineligible to have that or any motor vehicle 
returned under this section.  

D. Immobilization may be accomplished by an immobilization device (boot) at 
the owner’s designated location within the city limits, or by impoundment at a 
secure facility, in accordance with procedures established by the police 
department. 

E. The operator or owner shall pay towing and storage fees and all fees 
associated with the immobilization or interlock device. 

F. If a vehicle is determined by the police department to be so seriously 
damaged that it cannot be driven without extensive repairs and if the vehicle 
is not impounded as evidence, the police department may have the vehicle 
towed to a private towing company lot. The owner of the vehicle may recover 
the vehicle by a payment of $270 to the police department and payment of 
any towing and storage charges to the private towing company. In the 
alternative, the owner may convey his or her interest in the vehicle to the 
police department and the owner shall not be charged any fees. If an owner 
does not choose either or these two options within thirty (30) days of 
impoundment, the vehicle shall be deemed impounded and shall be disposed 
of by the police department. 

 
 

24-02-060.  Property Interest Not Subject to Forfeiture 
A. Notwithstanding the provisions above, any forfeiture shall be subject to the 

interest of:  
 (1) Any owner or co-owner of the vehicle not listed or named on the 

title or registration with the operator who cause the vehicle to become a 
nuisance, who did not have knowledge of, nor consented to, the use of the 
vehicle by the operator who caused the vehicle to become a nuisance, 
provided that upon establishment of a prima facie case of lack of knowledge 
or consent by the owner or co-owner, the burden or proving knowledge and 
consent shall be upon the city. 

 (2)  Any secured party, to the extent of the security interest, if the 
secured party establishes the security interest was acquired in good faith 
with no knowledge or reason to believe that the vehicle would be used by 
the operator of the vehicle declared to be a public nuisance as set forth in 
this section. 

B. If the secured interest is greater than the value of the vehicle, title shall be 
transferred to the secured party upon approval of the district court. Any secured 
party acquiring an interest after the vehicle is in the custody of the police 
department shall have the burden of intervening in the forfeiture proceeding to 
protect such interest. Any interest in the vehicle shall be properly filed with the 
New Mexico motor vehicle division in accordance with Sections 66-3-201 and 66-
3-202 NMSA 1978 before the date of incident leading to the seizure. 
 
 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 12 - 

24-02-070.  Severability  
If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall, for any reason, be 
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability or such section, 
clause or provision shall not affect any other part of this ordinance. 
 

ARTICLE V 
 
 That the Alamogordo Code of Ordinances, Chapter 24, Traffic, is amended to 
add the following new Article 24-03 to read as follows: 
 

24-03 Removal and Impounding of Vehicles 
 
24-03-010.  Definitions. 
The following defined terms shall be applicable to this article, and in addition to any 
other terms defined elsewhere in this article. 
 
Impound Lot shall mean the storage facility(ies) designated by the City of Alamogordo 
by resolution which provides for the secure storage of impounded vehicles seized 
pursuant to the Alamogordo Municipal Code or any other laws of the State of New 
Mexico. 
 
Lien holder shall mean a bona fide lien holder whose security interest in the vehicle has 
been perfected in the manner prescribed by law prior to the impoundment of the vehicle. 
 
Motor Vehicle Code means Articles 1 through 8 of Chapter 66 NMSA 1978 [except 66-
7-102.1 NMSA 1978], as amended, supplemented, modified, reenacted and/or 
recodified, from time to time. 
 
Motor vehicle is any wheeled vehicle which is self-propelled and designed to travel 
along the ground and shall include, but not be limited to automobiles, buses, 
motorbikes, motorcycles, motor scooters, trucks, tractors, go-carts, golf carts, 
recreational vehicles and trailers.  
 
Owner shall mean any person which is the actual owner or holder of legal title to any 
vehicle; the agent for any such actual owner or holder; the custodian of a vehicle; and/or 
the lessee of any vehicle. 
 
Person shall mean any natural person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, trust 
or other entity. 
 
 
24-03-020. Official impound lot designated. 
The City shall designate by resolution an official impound lot or impound lots for all 
vehicles impounded under the provisions of this article. Any vehicle impounded 
pursuant to this article will be stored at the impound lot with the exception of those 
vehicles impounded by Alamogordo Police Department for a criminal investigation. 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 13 - 

 
 
24-03-030.  Removal of vehicles. 
Whenever any vehicle shall be impounded or towed pursuant to the Uniform Traffic 
Ordinance, Alamogordo Municipal Code section 14-01-140, any other laws of the State 
of New Mexico or City ordinance, now or hereafter in effect, such vehicles shall be 
removed, by or at the direction of the Alamogordo Police Department, to the impound 
lot.  All vehicles that are seized pursuant to the authority of Chapter 24-02 of the 
Alamogordo Municipal Code, or other laws of the State of New Mexico or ordinances of 
the City, shall be removed, by or at the direction of the Police Department, to the 
impound lot. 
 
 
24-03-040.  Recovery by owner. 
Before an owner shall be permitted to remove an impounded vehicle from the impound 
lot, the owner shall pay to the actual charges incurred by the City in removing such 
vehicle to the impound lot and storage charges, all of which storage charges shall be 
determined in accordance with the provisions of section 24-03-050 of this article.  
 
 
24-03-050.  Amount of storage charges. 
The fee for impounding a vehicle shall be equal to the fee charged by the towing 
services who tows the vehicle.  The storage cost of the impounded vehicle shall be 
$25.00 a day for each motor vehicle stored in the impound lot. Any part of a day shall 
count as a whole day. 
 
 
24-03-060.  Payment of charges; liability to other penalties. 
The payment of the towing fee and storage charges shall not operate to relieve the 
owner of such vehicle from liability for any fine or penalty imposed for any civil or 
criminal violation of any law or ordinance on account of which the vehicle is impounded, 
and provided further that the payment of such charges shall be final and conclusive and 
shall constitute a waiver of any right to recover the monies paid. 
 
 
24-03-070. Towing and Storage Lien. 
The City shall have a lien on the motor vehicle for the towing fees and storage charges, 
may retain possession of the vehicle until the fees and charges are paid, and may have 
the vehicle sold at public auction to satisfy the lien. The lien that attaches to the vehicle 
shall be in accordance with Article 3, Liens on Personal Property, of Chapter 66 NMSA 
1978, and may be foreclosed in the manner provided in section 48-3-13, NMSA 1978. 
 
 
24-03-080.  Lienholders. 
A lienholder asserting its right to possession of an impounded vehicle pursuant to its 
conditional sales agreement may obtain immediate release of such vehicle by paying 



New Material  Deleted Material 

- 14 - 

the applicable towing fees and storage charges provided in subsection (b) of this 
section and submitting a photocopy of the conditional sales agreement and title 
certificate, an affidavit stating that the purchaser is in default of the agreement and an 
indemnification certificate executed by an authorized agent of the lienholder. 
 

Article VI 
 
 Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and publication as provided by law. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED, this ________ day of _______, 2014. 
 

 
CITY OF ALAMOGORDO, NEW MEXICO 
a New Mexico municipal corporation 

 
 
 

By:_______________________________ 
Susie Galea, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Reneé L. Cantin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Stephen P. Thies, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
First publication: 
Final publication: 
Effective date: 



RCantin
Typewritten Text







































RCantin
Typewritten Text

RCantin
Typewritten Text

















RCantin
Typewritten Text














































	Addendum
	Agenda (3)
	1) Presentation - GAF
	2) Presentation - Puppy Sales
	Ord. 1328 (3) 

	City Profile Article
	3) Minutes Approval
	4) Executive Session Statement
	5) Investment Report
	Report (5)

	6) Agreement - APSOA
	Agreement (23) 

	7) Easement Agreement w/NM Gas for Airport
	8) TABDL - Carino's 
	Application
	Special Dispenser Permit Application
	Event Layout (4) 

	9) TABDL - Wine Fest
	Application
	Public Celebration Permit Apps (12)

	10) Res. 2014-37 NMAAA Signatory Authority
	Res. 2014-37

	11) Res. 2014-38 Convenience Ctr Rates
	Res. 2014-38 (2)
	Acct. Balance Inquiry 2014 
	Acct. Balance Inquiry 2013

	12) Res. 2014-39 Budget Adjustment
	Res. 2014-39
	All Funds Summary (2) 
	Revision Detail (2) 
	Schedule of Adjustments

	13) Res. 2014-40 SNMEDD/COG
	Res. 2014-40
	Letter from COG
	Agreement
	Dues Structure
	SNMEDD Budget

	14) Ord. 1468 Vehicle Forfeiture FINAL
	Ord. 1468 (14) 

	15) Ord. 1472 Pigeon Nuisance FINAL 
	Ord. 1472 (4) 

	16) RFQ No. 2014-04 Florida Ave. Realignment
	Score Sheet

	17) RFQ No. 2014-07 Reclaimed Water Line Looping Project
	Score Sheet
	Email from NMED

	18) United Way Request for Convenience Center Fees
	Request Letter

	19) Allsup's Liquor License
	Notice from Alcohol & Gaming
	License Application
	Survey of property line.
	Zoning Letter
	Posting Certificate
	Letter to applicant

	20) PW Bid 2014-013 Indian Wells/Pecan 
	Bid Tabulation

	21) Utility Bill - 300 24th St.
	Letter to Property Owner

	22) Utility Bill - 1601 Memory Lane
	Letter to Property Owner
	Agenda Request

	23) Longevity Payment to Non-Represented Employees
	24) Ord. 1474 UTO Amendments
	Ord. 1474 (9)

	25) Extra Mile Day
	26) NMML Annual Conference Voting Delegate
	Letter from NMML
	Policy Process Outline & Business Mtg. Rules (4)

	27) Boards & Committees
	Application - Eldon Hoover




